
 
 

  
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
 

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER  25, 2023, NOON 
111 W. Harbor Drive, 2nd Floor, Executive Boardroom 

 San Diego, California 92101  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

AGENDA 
 

Telephone number for members of the public 
to observe, listen, and address the meeting telephonically: 

1(888) 251-2909 – Access code is 6724115#  
  

 
1. Call to Order –  Carlos Cota, Chair 
  
2. Non-Agenda Public Comments 
 
This portion of the agenda provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on items of interest within the jurisdiction of 
the Board that are not on the posted agenda.  Pursuant to the Brown Act, no discussion or action shall be taken by the Board on items not posted 
on the agenda.  
 
3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items  
 
 Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of Board Meeting of September 27, 2023  
 

Action Item(s): 
 
B. Audit Committee (Will Rodriguez-Kennedy) 

 
(1) Acceptance of Audited Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended 

June 30, 2023 
 

C. Executive Committee (Carlos Cota) 
 
(1) Strategic Plan Update 

 
D. Budget Committee ( Shawn VanDiver) 

 
(1) Acceptance of Financial Report from Chief Financial Officer 

 
(2) Authorization to Contract for Fireproofing Services 

 
(3) Authorization to Contract for Uniform Purchase 

 
E. Sales & Marketing Committee (Jeff Gattas) 

                             
4. Chief Operating Officer’s  Report (Corey Albright) 
 



 
 
SDCCC Board of Directors 
October 25, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
5. President’s Report (Rip Rippetoe)  
 
6. Chair’s Report (Carlos Cota) 
 
7. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a)(2)] 
 
8.  Urgent non-agenda items (must meet the requirements of Government Code, Section 54954.2) 
 
Adjournment 
 

This information is available in alternative formats upon request.  To request an agenda in an alternative format, or to request a sign 
language, oral interpreter, an Assistive Listening Devise (“ALD”), or other reasonable accommodation for the meeting, please call Pat Evans 
at (619) 525-5131 at least two working days prior to the meeting to ensure availability.  Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are 
available upon request. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy. 
 
In compliance with Government Code section 54957.5, non-exempt written material that is distributed to the Board prior to the meeting will 
be available at the meeting or it may be viewed in advance of the meeting online at visitsandiego.com.  Materials distributed to the board 
after the posting of this agenda also will be available.  Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or pat.evans@visitsandiego.com if you 
would like to receive a copy of any material related to an item on this agenda. 
 
Action items on this agenda may be consolidated for voting purposes into a single vote of the Board, to the extent they are routine or 
otherwise do not require further deliberation. A Board member may comment on an action item before it is voted upon as part of the 
consolidated vote; however, if a Board member wishes to discuss an action item, that item will not be included in the consolidated 
vote. If a member of the public wishes to comment upon an action item, they should so advise the Board chair at or before the public 
comment portion of the meeting, in which case that item will not be included in any consolidated vote.   



 

1 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 3.A  
 
 

MINUTES* 
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

BOARD MEETING OF September 27, 2023 
     

BOARD MEMBERS 
PRESENT: 

Chair Carlos Cota and Directors  Jeff Gattas, Will Rodriguez-
Kennedy, Jaymie Bradford, and Alyssa Turowski 

BOARD MEMBER(S) 
ABSENT: 
 

Directors Shawn VanDiver and Carol Kim 

STAFF PRESENT: Rip Rippetoe, Mardeen Mattix, Corey Albright, Andy Mikschl, 
Michael Milligan, Victoria Mitchell, and Pat Evans (Recorder) 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Jennifer Lyon, General Counsel  
 

*Audio copies of Board of Director meetings are available upon request. Please contact Pat Evans at (619)525-5131 or 
pat.evans@visitsandiego.com to request a copy. 
 
1. Call to Order 
 

Chair Carlos Cota called the Board Meeting to order at 12:04 p.m. in the Executive 
Boardroom of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San 
Diego, CA 92101.   
 
Chair Cota then called roll to determine which Directors were present: 
 
Director Cota – Present 
Director Gattas –  Present 
Director VanDiver - Absent 
Director Bradford – Present 
Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Present 
Director Turowski– Present 
Director Kim – Absent 
 
All Directors were recorded as present except Director Shawn VanDiver and Director 
Carol Kim.  Chair Cota noted that all votes taken during this meeting would be recorded 
via roll call vote. 

  
  



 

2 
 

2. Non-Agenda Public Comment – Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public 
wished to comment on any non-Agenda items.  No members of the public responded to the 
request for comment. 
 

 3. Board Committee Reports and Board Action Items:   
 

 Consent Agenda: 
 

A. Approval of Minutes of Board Meeting of August 23, 2023. 
 
Chair Cota inquired if any Director would like to pull a Consent Agenda item for 
discussion.  Hearing no request to pull a Consent Agenda item,  Chair Cota then inquired 
if any member of the public wished to comment on Agenda Item (3.A).  No members of 
the public responded to the request for comment. 
 
After request for Director discussion and for public comment, Directors Turowski 
and Rodriguez-Kennedy moved and seconded, respectively, to approve the Consent 
Agenda as set forth hereinabove. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Absent 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
Director Turowski – Aye 
Director Kim – Absent 

 
Vote:  Unanimous 
 
AYES:  5       NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 

  
Action Item(s): 
 

 
B. Budget Committee) 

 
(1) Acceptance of Financial Report from Chief Financial Officer 

 
Ms. Mattix reported  the following:  

 
o The month of July 2023 met budget expectations, with ESRI and Comic-Con 

contributing significantly (92% of revenue).  There were a total of 5 events hosted, 
including 2 Citywide events and 3 local meeting/association events.  

o Most expense categories are under budget, except for utilities, which experienced 
a record high cost of nearly $900,000 during the month.  

o Operating results were close to breaking even for the month.  However, there was 
a reduction of $.6M due to the IBank principal debt payment.  Unrestricted reserves 
started the year at $29.2M and currently stand at $28.5M.  

o Field work for the Corporation’s 2022 financial audit is nearly completed. 



 

3 
 

o The Human Resources Department is fully staffed, and the Department has 
instituted a paid EAP which offers confidential emotional, financial, legal and 
identity theft counseling 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year. This 
benefit is available to all staff (full and part-time employees) as well as any of their 
household members via chat, text, and tele-video communication options.  

o Staff continues its collaboration with the City and Port regarding a structured 25-
year license/lease PPA solar initiative in addition to a roof replacement project.  All 
of the entities involved in the process are evaluating financing mechanisms and 
approval processes. 
 

 Director Carol Kim arrived at the meeting at 12:10 p.m. 
 
After Ms. Mattix submitted her report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public 
wished to comment on Agenda Item 3.B.1.  No members of the public responded to the 
request for comment. 

 
After presentation by Staff, Directors Kim and Rodriguez-Kennedy moved and 
seconded, respectively,  to Accept the CFO Financial Report from the Chief Financial 
Officer. 
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Absent 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 
Director Turowski – Aye 
Director Kim – Aye 

 
Vote:  Unanimous  
 
AYES:   6      NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 
 

(2)  Authorize Approval of Change Order to Window Sealant Replacement 
Contract 
 

Chair Cota called for a staff report regarding this item.  After staff submitted its 
report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished to comment on 
Agenda Item 3.B.2. No members of the public responded to the request for 
comment. 
 

After presentations by Staff, Directors Gattas and Kim moved and seconded, 
respectively, to Authorize Approval of a Change Order to the Window Sealant 
Replacement Contract which revised the project budget from $290,000 to $400,000.   
 
Director Cota – Aye 
Director Gattas –  Aye 
Director VanDiver – Absent 
Director Bradford – Aye 

 Director Rodriguez-Kennedy – Aye 



 

4 
 

Director Turowski – Aye 
Director Kim – Aye 
 
Vote:  Unanimous  
 
AYES:   6        NAYS:  0   ABSTENTIONS: 0 
 
C. Sales & Marketing Committee (Jeff Gattas) 

 
Andy Mikschl presented the following report: 

• The Sales team continues to take a very selective approach regarding the short-term 
events they are booking.  

• The short-term Sales team booked two new events. 
• Mr. Mikschl invited SDTA President & CEO, Julie Coker, to report on long-term 

sales results. 
• Ms. Coker reviewed the statewide master tourism plan wherein $46 million will be 

distributed to four California gateway cities to promote tourism.  She also discussed 
the master tourism sustainability plan. 

• Ms. Coker noted a major event has been booked at the Center in 2032 and she 
further noted that the funnel of potential business currently has over 700,000 room 
nights compared to 280,000 room nights during the same period in the peak year of 
2019. 

• Comic-Con is in the process of exploring hotel contract opportunities. 
• The organizational  efforts for the upcoming PCMA event are all-consuming. 

Current booked event attendance is lower than 2020 but higher than last year.  The 
PCMA event will be an opportunity to reeducate the industry regarding all San 
Diego has to offer. 

• The sales team recently hosted an event in Atlanta, Georgia which was attended by 
70 association CEOs, 50% of which were new to the event. 

• The team will also be hosting events in New York and Philadelphia and will have 
a presence at the IMEX event in Las Vegas. 

• The SDTA team has an opening for a VP of Sales position which will focus on 
hotel event sales. 

• CalTravel is still attempting to resolve the issue of the long wait times associated 
with obtaining visas to visit the U.S. for conferences. 
 

After staff submitted its reports, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished 
to comment on Agenda Item (3.C).  No members of the public responded to the request for 
comment.  No vote was required on this item as it is a Sales & Marketing Committee 
update. 
 

4.      President’s Report (Rip Rippetoe) – Mr. Rippetoe reported:  
 

• Mr. Rippetoe acknowledged Director Kim’s recent John S. Lyons award for “Labor 
Leader of the Year.” 

• Bobby Ramirez has been promoted to Area Vice-President by Sodexo Live! and 
Dorianne Mormann has been elevated to the position of the Convention Center’s 
General Manager by Sodexo Live! 



 

5 
 

• The Wall Street Journal named the San Diego Convention Center as the number 
four center in the Nation. 

• The United Nation’s World Tourism Organization celebrates World Tourism Day 
today. 

• Starting in October, a COO report will be added to the Board agenda. 
• Paul Turner, the Center’s new General Manager, will start his position at the 

Convention Center on Monday, October 2, 2023. 
 

After staff submitted its report, Chair Cota inquired if any member of the public wished 
to comment on Agenda Item (4).  No members of the public responded to the request 
for comment. 

5. Chair’s Report (Carlos Cota) – Chair Cota reported:  
  

• Pursuant to Board policy, Chair Cota appointed the following Board Directors to 
serve on the Board’s Ad Hoc Nominating Committee:  Director Cota, Director 
Turowski and Director Kim.  This Committee will determine the slate of officers 
that will be voted upon for 2024 Board service. 

• The next Board meeting is scheduled for October 25, 2023, at Noon. 
• Director Cota also provided an overview of his tour of the Westside Kitchen 

remodel project. 
 

6. Board Comment [Govt. Code § 54954.2(a) (2)] –  Director Gattas discussed his recent 
attendance at the annual IAVM Venue Connect conference held this year in Pittsburgh.  
The conference covered notable trends within the convention industry and Director Gattas 
observed that the San Diego Convention Center was better positioned than most other 
venues, post-Covid, to resume business.  Director Gattas also had an opportunity to observe 
how politics of the business plays out in other cities and impacts convention business.  He 
would recommend that Directors attend this event if given the opportunity.   

 
Director Bradford reported that the San Diego Chamber’s Binational Delegation trip to 
Mexico City is scheduled for October 8-11, 2023. 

 
7. Urgent non-agenda items (must meet the requirements of Government Code, Section 

54954.2):  None 
 
8.   Closed Session:  The Board entered into closed session at 1:09 p.m. to discuss the items 

set forth herein below.  
 

A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL--ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(d)(2):   (1 case) 
Facts and circumstances pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(e)(1) 

 
The Board returned to open session at 1:32 p.m. 

 
  



 

6 
 

Reporting out of closed session, General Counsel Lyon stated that the Board discussed item “8.A,” 
and direction was given but no reportable action was taken. 
 
There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 1:32 p.m. 
 

I, Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary of the Board of Directors of the San Diego 
Convention Center Corporation, Inc., do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy 
of the minutes of the business transacted by the Board of Directors of the San Diego Convention 
Center Corporation, Inc., at a duly noticed meeting held on September 27, 2023, and that said 
minutes were approved by the Board of Directors on October 25, 2023. 

     
 
____________________________________ 
Will Rodriguez-Kennedy, Secretary  



DRAFT
San Diego Convention 
Center Corporation 
Report to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors 
October 26, 2023 

Agenda Item 3.B.1



DRAFT

 

 

[Firm Letterhead With Address] 

 
October 26, 2023 
 
 
To the Audit Committee and Board of Directors 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation 
San Diego, California 
 
 
We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of the San Diego 
Convention Center Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023. This report 
summarizes certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your 
oversight responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting process.  
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and Board of Directors 
and management of the Corporation, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other 
than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any questions you have about this report. 
We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to the Corporation. 
 
[Firm Signature] 
 
 



DRAFT

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Required Communications 1 

  
Exhibit—Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements] X 
  

 



DRAFT

 

1 

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (AU-C 260, The Auditor’s 
Communication With Those Charged With Governance), collectively hereafter, the Auditing Standards 
require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor and those charged 
with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our responsibilities regarding 
the financial statement audit as well as observations arising from our audit that are significant and relevant 
to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process. 

Our Responsibilities With Regard to the Financial Statement Audit  

Our responsibilities under the Auditing Standards have been described to you in our engagement letter 
dated July 5, 2023. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or those charged 
with governance of their responsibilities, which are also described in that letter. 

Overview of the Planned Scope and Timing of the Financial Statement Audit 

We have issued a separate communication dated July 5, 2023 regarding the planned scope and timing of 
our audit and identified significant risks.  

Accounting Policies and Practices 

Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices 
Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP), in certain 
circumstances, management may select among alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such 
circumstances, management has selected the preferable accounting practice. 

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies 
Management has the ultimate responsibility for the appropriateness of the accounting policies used by the 
Corporation. As described in Note 2 to the financial statements,  the following is a description of significant 
accounting policies or their application that were either initially selected during the year:  

 The Corporation implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 
94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment Arrangements. The 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 94 did not have a material impact on the financial 
statements. 

 The Corporation implemented GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information 
Technology Arrangements. The management evaluated the Corporation’s existing subscription-
based information technology arrangements and chose not to apply to the pronouncements since 
there is no significant arrangements impact to the financial statements. 

Significant Accounting Policies 
We did not identify any significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for which there is 
a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. 

Significant Unusual Transactions 
We did not identify any significant unusual transactions. 

 

 



DRAFT

 

2 

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates  
The followings are about the process used by management in formulating particularly sensitive accounting 
estimates: 

 Management’s estimate of the depreciation expense for capital assets is computed using the 
straight-line method based on the estimated useful-life, which is determined by management. 

 Management’s estimates of the fair value of investments, except the cash equivalent investment 
contracts, repurchase agreement and bank money market funds, are based on quoted prices, bid 
evaluation, or matrix pricing techniques. The repurchase agreement is valued a amortized cost and 
the bank money market funds are measured at the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its 
equivalent). 

 Management’s estimate of the allowance of doubtful accounts is based on experience and 
information about each receivable including evaluating individual customer accounts receivable 
and considering the customer’s financial condition, credit history and current economic conditions. 

Audit Adjustments and Uncorrected Misstatements  

Audit adjustments, other than those that are clearly trivial and recorded by the Corporation are shown as 
follows: 

1. Dr. Right-to-Use Leased Asset $ 1,122,331  

 Cr. Lease Liability  $ 1,122,331 

   To recognize leased asset (right-to-use) and lease liability at the lease contract inception 

2. Dr. Amortization Expense – Right-to-Use Leased Asset $ 140,291  

 Cr. Accumulated Amortization Expense  $ 140,291 

   To recognize amortization expenses for the right-to-use leased asset for three months. 

3. Dr. Lease Liability $ 126,629  

 Dr. Interest Expense (on Lease Liability) $ 24,307  

 Cr. Rental Expense  $ 150,936 

   To recognize interest expense on Lease Liability and reduce lease payable for three months.  

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop management’s estimates listed above and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

 

 

 

 

 



DRAFT

 

3 

Description 

Effect—[Increase (Decrease)] [Debit (Credit)] 

Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Expense 

      
AJE #1  $  1,122,331  $   1,122,331 $               -  $                -  $                -  
AJE #2       (140,291)                      -                   -                     -         140,291  
AJE #3          (126,629)             (126,629)  
      
                
Totals                
Total adjustments $      982,040  $     995,702     $                -  $      13,662  
[Increase/decr.] in 

net income           (13,662)   
Cumulative effect 

on equity     $      (13,662)    
 
 
 
Observations About the Audit Process  

Disagreements With Management  
We encountered no disagreements with management over the application of significant accounting 
principles, the basis for management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the audit or 
significant disclosures to be included in the financial statements.  

Significant Issues Discussed With Management 
No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or were the subject of correspondence with 
management. 

Significant Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with management during the audit. 

Difficult or Contentious Matters That Required Consultation 
We did not encounter any significant and difficult or contentious matters that required consultation outside 
the engagement team. 

Shared Responsibilities: AICPA Independence 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA) regularly emphasizes that auditor 
independence is a joint responsibility and is managed most effectively when management, audit 
committees, and audit firms work together in considering compliance with AICPA independence rules. For 
MGO to fulfill its professional responsibility to maintain and monitor independence, management, the 
Corporation’s Audit Committee and Board of Directors, and MGO each play an important role. 

Our Responsibilities 
 AICPA rules require independence both of mind and in appearance when providing audit and other 

attestation services. MGO is to ensure that the AICPA’s General Requirements for performing non-
attest services are adhered to and included in all letters of engagement. 

 Maintain a system of quality management over compliance with independence rules and firm 
policies. 



DRAFT

 

4 

 
The Corporation’s Responsibilities 

 Timely inform MGO, before the effective date of transactions or other business changes, of the 
following: 
− New affiliates, directors, or officers. 
− New beneficial owners of the Corporation’s stock which have significant influence. 
− Change in corporate structure impacting affiliates such as add-on acquisitions or exits. 

 Provide necessary affiliate information such as new or updated investment structure charts, as well 
as financial information required to perform materiality calculations needed for making affiliate 
determinations. 

 Understand and conclude on the permissibility, prior to the Corporation and its affiliates, officers, 
directors, or persons in a decision-making capacity, engaging in business relationships with MGO. 

 Not entering into relationships resulting in close family members of MGO covered persons, 
temporarily or permanently acting as an officer, director, or person in an accounting or financial 
reporting oversight role at the Corporation. 

Shared Responsibilities for Independence 

Auditor independence is a joint responsibility and is managed most effectively when management, audit 
committees, and audit firms work together in considering compliance with applicable independence rules. 
For MGO to fulfill its professional responsibility to maintain and monitor independence, management, the 
audit committee, and MGO each play an important role. 

Our Responsibilities 
 We are required to maintain both independence of mind and in appearance when providing audit 

and other attestation services. It is our responsibility to ensure that the general requirements for 
performing non-attest services are adhered to and included in all letters of engagement. 

 We are required to maintain a system of quality control over compliance with independence rules 
and firm policies. 

 
The Corporation’s Responsibilities 

 Timely inform MGO, before the effective date of transactions or other business changes, of the 
following: 
− New affiliates, directors, or officers. 
− New beneficial owners of the Corporation’s stock which have significant influence. 
− Change in corporate structure impacting affiliates such as add-on acquisitions or exits. 

 Provide necessary affiliate information such as new or updated investment structure charts, as well 
as financial information required to perform materiality calculations needed for making affiliate 
determinations. 

 Understand and conclude on the permissibility, prior to the Corporation and its affiliates, officers, 
directors, or persons in a decision-making capacity, engaging in business relationships with MGO. 

 Not entering into relationships resulting in close family members of MGO covered persons, 
temporarily or permanently acting as an officer, director, or person in an accounting or financial 
reporting oversight role at the Corporation.  

Internal Control Matters  

We have separately communicated significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
financial reporting identified during our audit of the financial statements. 

Significant Written Communications Between Management and Our Firm  

We obtained significant written communications between our firm and the management of the 
Corporation, including the representation letter provided to us by management, dated on October 26, 
2023.



DRAFT

 

 

EXHIBIT 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 



DRAFT

 

 

UPCOMING  ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The following accounting pronouncements have been issued by Government Accounting Standard Board 
(GASB), but are not yet effective and may affect the future financial reporting by the Corporation. 

Pronouncement Summary 

Effective Fiscal 

Year 

GASB Statement No. 99, 
Omnibus 2022 

The objectives of this Statement are to enhance 
comparability in accounting and financial reporting 
and to improve the consistency of authoritative 
literature by addressing (1) practice issues that 
have been identified during implementation and 
application of certain GASB statements and (2) 
accounting and financial reporting for financial 
guarantees. 

FY 2024 

GASB Statement No. 100, 
Accounting Changes and 
Error Corrections 

The objective of this Statement is to enhance 
accounting and financial reporting requirements 
for accounting changes and error corrections to 
provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, 
consistent, and comparable information for 
making decisions or assessing accountability. 

FY 2024 

GASB Statement No. 101, 
Compensated Absences 

The objectives of this Statement is to be better 
meet the informational needs of financial 
statement users by updating the recognition and 
measurement guidance for compensated 
absences. 

FY 2025 

  



DRAFT
SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER 

CORPORATION 

(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, 
California) 

Annual Financial Report 

As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023

                     Agenda Item 3.B.1
(Draft is subject to additional minor revisions)



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Annual Financial Report 
As of and for the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

Page 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report ...................................................................................................................... 1 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis  
(Required Supplementary Information – Unaudited) ............................................................................. 4 

 
Basic Financial Statements: 

 
Statement of Net Position .................................................................................................................... 10 

 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position  ......................................................... 11 

 
Statement of Cash Flows ..................................................................................................................... 12 

 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements ............................................................................................. 14 

 
Other Report: 

 
 Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and    

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards Statements ................................. 27 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



DRAFT

1 
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
 
To the Board of Directors 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation 
City of San Diego, California 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC), 
a component unit of the City of San Diego, California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the SDCCC’s basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the SDCCC as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in financial position 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of 
SDCCC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical 
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about SDCCC’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently 
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT

2 
 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting 
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or 
in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 
 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 

to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of SDCCC’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about SDCCC’s ability to continue as a going concern for a 
reasonable period of time. 

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control–related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 
 
Required Supplementary Information  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements 
in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 



DRAFT

3 
 

not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 
2023 on our consideration of SDCCC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral 
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
SDCCC’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 
 
 
San Diego, California 
 
October 26, 2023 
 
 
 



DRAFT

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

4 
 

As management of the San Diego Convention Center Corporation (“SDCCC”), we offer readers of 
SDCCC’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of SDCCC 
for the year ended June 30, 2023.  We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with the basic financial statements and the accompanying notes to those statements appearing 
in this report. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is to serve as the introduction to SDCCC’s basic financial statements.  We 
report our financial information using accounting methods similar to those used by private-sector 
companies.  These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about its activities.    
   
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all SDCCC’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources as of June 30, 2023. The difference between (a) assets and 
deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources is reported as net 
position. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of SDCCC is improving or deteriorating.  
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position presents information showing changes 
in SDCCC’s net position during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported when 
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. 
Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows 
in future fiscal periods (e.g. earned but unused paid time off). 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents information showing cash receipts and cash payments during the 
fiscal year, a reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities, investing 
activities, and financing activities. 
 
Highlights to Financial Results 
 
SDCCC business activity continues to reshape post-COVID-19 pandemic not only in the convention 
industry but in tourism in general.  The core business has substantially returned to near pre-pandemic 
revenue levels as of June 30, 2023, with a focus on re-building staffing levels to support activity.  
Additionally, SDCCC has been building a robust maintenance department including long-term capital 
planning in coordination with City of San Diego team to ensure the building maintains the necessary 
infrastructure and functionality to continue to welcome guests to the destination that generates tax revenue 
and economic impact for the region. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

5 
 

Management Financial Statement Analysis   
 
The following is a summary of SDCCC’s assets, liabilities and net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
   

June 30, 2023 June 30, 2022

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 12,226,115$        7,929,634$          54%
Investments 22,745,894          16,466,808          38%
Accounts receivable, net 6,316,905            6,721,602            -6%
Intergovernmental receivable, net -                       10,196,440          -100%
Prepaid expenses 1,147,357            942,608               22%
Deposits with others 135,504               194,548               -30%
Inventory 53,081                 55,176                 -4%
Note receivable 374,556               374,556               0%
Capital assets, net 33,488,593          33,230,671          1%

Total assets 76,488,005$        76,112,043$        0%

Liabilities
Accounts payable 1,184,431$          1,140,413$          4%
Accrued liabilities and compensated absences 3,400,643            2,499,360            36%
Accrued I-Bank interest and loan administrative fee 396,855               411,264               -4%
Retention payable 22,473                 27,300                 -18%
Unearned income 7,334,168            7,969,645            -8%
Long-term debt 23,406,337          23,225,953          1%
Total liabilities 35,744,907          35,273,936          1%

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 11,580,103          11,503,488          1%
Unrestricted 29,162,995          29,334,619          -1%
Total net position 40,743,098          40,838,107          0%

Total liabilities and net position 76,488,005$        76,112,043$        



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

6 
 

Assets 

Total assets for fiscal year 2023 remained unchanged with a nominal increase of $.4 million, to $76.5 
million from $76.1 million in fiscal year 2022, due to direct offsetting category fluctuations.  Combined 
increases in cash and cash equivalents as well as investments totaled $10.6 million, or 43%, related to the 
receipt of a large invoice receivable in the prior year of $10.5M that directly reduced accounts receivables 
by 63%.  Additionally, net capital assets increased by $.3 million, or 1%, primarily the result of purchases 
slightly exceeding depreciation and amortization for the year.  
 
Liabilities 

Total liabilities for fiscal year 2023 increased by $.5 million, or 1%, to $35.7 million as compared to $35.3 
million for fiscal year 2022 with offsetting category fluctuations. Total unearned income decreased by $.6 
million, or 8%, and total long-term debt increased by $.2 million, or 1%, related to net impact of a principal 
payments and a new lease payable for the truck marshal yard.  Accrued liabilities and compensated absences 
increased $.9 million, or 36%, due to payroll activities and contract services incurred in June 2023 to be 
paid in early July 2023. 
 
Net Position 

Total net position for fiscal year 2023 remained virtually unchanged. Net investment in capital assets 
nominally increased by $.1 million, or 1%.  Unrestricted net position nearly decreased by $.2 million due 
to increase of liabilities, mainly in accrued liabilities and compensated absences and long-term debt.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

7 
 

The following table summarizes SDCCC’s changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022.  
 

 
  

Operating Revenue 

Total operating revenues generated in fiscal year 2023 amounted to $44.7 million as compared to $38.6 
million for fiscal year 2022, an increase of $6.1 million, or 16%.  The change was the result of core business 
operation categories rebounding post-pandemic due to a concentrated sales effort to book more corporate, 
technology, and medical shows that typically yield better business opportunities for internal partners and 
the surrounding businesses while maximizing hotel occupancy to generate a greater regional impact and 
produce tax revenue for the City of San Diego.  

Period ended
6/30/2023

Period ended 
6/30/2022

Percentage
Increase

(Decrease)
Operating revenues

Rental 9,936,614$         8,192,149$         21%

Food and beverage 12,782,573         5,418,998           136%

Ancillary services 18,612,383         11,690,987         59%

Contributions from the City of San Diego 2,655,000           10,196,440         -74%

HHS Emergency Intake -                      2,452,255           -100%

TMD - San Diego Tourism Authoity -                      99,075                -100%

Business development and sponsorship 693,552              501,182              38%

Other revenue 4,599                  8,402                  -45%

Total operating revenues 44,684,721         38,559,488         16%

Operating expenses

Salaries and wages 20,374,538         16,122,495         26%

Fringe benefits 4,897,999           3,771,856           30%

Utilities 5,934,973           4,394,250           35%

Services and supplies 7,949,661           6,407,954           24%

Depreciation & amortization 2,921,622           2,801,304           4%

Marketing contract 2,655,000           1,900,000           40%

Total operating expenses 44,733,793         35,397,859         26%

Operating income (49,072)               3,161,629           -102%

Non-operating revenues (expenses)

Forgiveness of Debt - PPP Loan -                      6,387,000           -100%

Interest income 632,338              (773,967)             -182%

Interest expense (831,283)             (836,102)             -1%

Loan administrative fee (67,435)               (69,869)               -3%

Other income 220,443              226,618              -3%

Total non-operating revenue (expenses), net (45,937)               4,933,680           -101%

Change in net position (95,009)               8,095,309           -101%

Net position - beginning of year 40,838,107         32,742,798         25%

Net position - end of year 40,743,098$       40,838,107$       0%



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

8 
 

Operating Expenses 

Total operating expenses incurred during fiscal year 2023 amounted to $44.7 million, compared to $35.4 
million for fiscal year 2022, an increase of $9.3 million, or 26% in nearly all categories.  Increased salary 
and fringe benefit expenses totaled $5.4 million, or 27%, due to increased wages to maintain competitive 
salaries to retain the workforce as well as creating a new engineering and capital planning department to 
address long-term building rehabilitation and maintenance needs.  Additionally, utilities increased by $1.5 
million, or 35%, followed by an increase of $1.5 million in service and supplies primarily related to repairs 
and maintenance and small equipment purchases. Additionally, the San Diego Tourism Authority 
marketing agreement increased by nearly $.8 million, or 40%, by resuming full contractual obligations after 
being reduced during the pandemic.  
 
Non-operating Revenue and Expenses, net 

Non-operating expenses, net for fiscal year 2023 was $45.9 thousand compared to non-operating revenues 
of $4.9 million in the prior year, a decrease of $5.0 million. The change was due to offsetting category 
fluctuations related to prior year debt forgiveness of $6.4 million for the loans received under the Paycheck 
Protection Program that was not applicable to fiscal year 2023 offset by a $1.4 million increase in interest 
income due to increased market interest rates. 
 
Capital Assets Analysis 
 
As of June 30, 2023, SDCCC had a net capital asset book value of $33.5 million, as compared to $33.2 
million as of June 30, 2022, an increase of $.3 million, or 1%. Capital assets are spread across a broad range 
of computer, office and operating equipment, telecommunications, and leasehold improvements. Net 
capital assets increased due to purchases of nearly $3.2 million exceeding depreciation and amortization 
made in fiscal year 2023 totaling $2.9 million. 
 
Debt Analysis 
 
Effective December 6, 2016, SDCCC and the City of San Diego, as co-lessees entered into a financing lease 
agreement with the I-Bank to finance capital infrastructure improvement projects valued at $25.5 million 
(“Facility Fund”).  The agreement calls for the Facility Fund to be amortized over 25 years at a 3.59% 
interest rate and 0.3% loan administrative fee of the outstanding principal balance.  As of June 30, 2023, 
SDCCC had an outstanding balance of $22.8 million, of which a total of $1.7 million (including principal, 
interest, and loan administrative fee) was repaid in fiscal year 2023.  
 
Effective April 15, 2013, SDCCC entered into a commercial lease agreement with CG 7600, LLC to finance 
a warehouse capital improvement for SDCCC valued at $21,972 with an option to extend.  The agreement 
calls for the loan to be amortized over 10 years at zero percent interest. SDCCC exercised its option to 
extend for an additional five years effective April 1, 2018.  For the year ended June 30, 2023, SDCCC paid 
$1,648 in principal payments on the warehouse loan. The note was paid in full in March 2023. 
 
Effective February 3, 2023, SCCC entered into a noncancelable lease agreement with Ward and Burke 
Tunneling Inc. to lease a truck marshal yard and warehouse space.  The lease commenced April 1, 2023 
and expires March 31, 2025.  The total principal and interest payments are $1,231,644 with an implicit rate 
of 9%. 
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 (Unaudited) 
 

9 
 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget 
 
Operational contributions from the City for fiscal year 2023 were $2.7 million as compared to $10.3 million 
for fiscal year 2022, a decrease of $7.6 million.  In fiscal year 2024 SDCCC is expecting the City to 
contribute $2.7 million for SDTA marketing efforts and $5.0 million to support operations and debt service 
obligations.   
 
Effective July 1, 2012, the San Diego City Council approved for the long-term sales, marketing and 
promotional activities of the convention center to be transferred to a third party contractor, the San Diego 
Tourist Authority (“SDTA”).  Effective July 1, 2017, SDCCC entered into a marketing and sales contract 
with SDTA.  The marketing and sales contract was renegotiated and approved by City Council detailing 
the terms set forth by the City.  For the year ended June 30, 2023, SDCCC paid $2.7 million, or nearly $.8 
more than the prior year after resuming full contractual obligations that had been reduced during the 
pandemic.  
 
Request for Information 
 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of SDCCC’s finances. Questions concerning 
any of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be 
addressed to the CFO at the San Diego Convention Center Corporation, 111 West Harbor Drive, San Diego, 
CA  92101. 
 
 



DRAFT

 

 

 

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
 
 

 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2023

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 12,226,115$        
Investments 22,745,894          
Accounts receivable, net 5,316,905            
Prepaid expenses 1,147,357            
Deposits with others 135,504               
Inventory 53,081                 
     Total current assets 41,624,856          

Noncurrent assets:
Accounts receivable 1,000,000            
Note receivable 374,556               
Capital assets:
   Construction in progress 709,092               
   Furniture, equipment and software 6,964,940            
   Leasehold improvements 65,995,699          
   Right-to-Use leased asset 1,122,331            
   Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization (41,303,469)         
        Total capital assets, net 33,488,593          

     Total non-current assets 34,863,149          

Total assets 76,488,005          

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,184,431            
Accrued liabilities 1,920,745            
Accrued I-Bank interest and loan administrative fee 396,855               
Retention payable 22,473                 
Unearned income 4,240,986            
Compensated employee absences 1,479,898            
Current portion of long-term debt 1,384,843            
      Total current liabilities 10,630,231          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt 22,021,494          
Long-term portion of unearned income 3,093,182            
     Total noncurrent liabilities 25,114,676          

  Total liabilities 35,744,907          

Net position
Net investment in capital assets 11,580,103          
Unrestricted 29,162,995          
   Total net position 40,743,098$        

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

10



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Operating revenues
Rental revenue:
Convention and trade shows 7,980,439$          
Corporate/incentive events 612,046               
Consumer shows 402,140               
Meetings and seminars 339,696               
Cancelled events 407,431               
Community events 9,360                   
Local trade shows 185,502               

Food and beverage revenue 12,782,573          
Ancillary service revenue:
Utilities 6,510,726            
Telecommunications 5,816,188            
Event and cleaning services 4,306,092            
Audio visual 1,979,377            

Contributions:
City of San Diego 2,655,000            

Business development and sponsorship 693,552               
Other revenue 4,599                   
    Total operating revenues 44,684,721          

Operating expenses
Salaries and benefits 20,374,538          
Fringe benefits 4,897,999            
Utilities 5,934,973            
Repairs and maintenance 3,818,476            
General expenses 1,927,978            
Depreciation and amortization 2,921,622            
Contractual marketing and sales 2,655,000            
Contracted services 781,331               
Supplies 640,351               
Insurance 623,835               
Sales and marketing 42,888                 
Travel and transportation 67,883                 
Telecommunications 46,919                 

Total operating expenses 44,733,793          

Operating income (49,072)                

Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Investment Income 632,338               
Interest expense (831,283)              
Loan administrative fee (67,435)                
Other income 220,443               

Total non-operating revenues, net (45,937)                

Change in net position (95,009)                

Net position - beginning of year 40,838,107          
Net position - end of year 40,743,098$        

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

11



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from customers 42,019,384$            
Payments to suppliers for goods and services (16,295,441)             
Payments to employees for services (24,721,962)             
Contributions received from the City of San Diego 2,655,000                
Other contributions 10,196,440              

Net cash provided by operating activities 13,853,421              

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,055,118)               
Repayment of long-term debt (941,947)                  
Interest and loan administrative fees paid on long-term debt (913,127)                  

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (3,910,192)               

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments (10,949,305)             
Sales of investments 4,670,219                
Proceed from restricted investments 632,338                   

Net cash used in investing activities (5,646,748)               

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 4,296,481                

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 7,929,634                
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year 12,226,115$            

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

12



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California)

Statement of Cash Flow (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by 
   operating activities
Receipts from customers (49,072)$                
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by 
   operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,921,622              
Other income (expense) 220,443                 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease in receivables 404,697                 
Decrease in other contribution receivable 10,196,440            
Increase in prepaid expenses (204,749)                
Decrease in deposits with others 59,044                   
Increase in accounts payable 44,232                   
Increase in compensated employee absences 315,804                 
Increase in accrued liabilities 585,264                 
Decrease in retention payable (4,827)                    
Decrease in unearned income (635,477)                

Net cash provided by operating activities 13,853,421$          

Noncash capital and related financing activities
Acquisition of capital assets included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 22,275$                 

See Accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

13



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

14 
 

NOTE 1.  REPORTING ENTITY 
 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC) is a not-for-profit public benefit corporation originally 
organized to market, operate and maintain the San Diego Convention Center (Convention Center).   
 
SDCCC acts in accordance with its By-Laws, the City of San Diego’s (City) Charter, and the City’s 
Municipal Code.  The City is the sole member of SDCCC and appoints seven voting members to the Board 
of Directors of SDCCC.  Since the City appoints the voting members of the Board of Directors of SDCCC 
and is able to impose its will on the SDCCC, the City, as the primary government, is financially accountable 
for SDCCC. In accordance within accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, SDCCC 
is a blended component unit of the City.  
 
The Convention Center was constructed by the San Diego Unified Port District (District) on land owned 
by the District.  Construction was completed in the fall of 1989 and the Convention Center opened in 
November 1989.  An expansion of the Convention Center that roughly doubled the size of the facility was 
constructed by the City and completed in September 2001.  The City has an agreement with the District to 
manage the Convention Center. 
 
SDCCC has a management agreement with the City to provide sales and marketing, operating and 
maintenance services for the Convention Center.  The agreement provides that the City will allocate to 
SDCCC approved budgetary amounts for marketing, promotion and capital projects for the Convention 
Center (refer to Note 7).   
 
NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
A. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 
 
The financial transactions of SDCCC are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and 
the full accrual basis accounting under which revenues are recognized as earned and expenses are 
recognized as incurred. SDCCC distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing event meeting space, goods and services 
in connection with SDCCC’s principal ongoing operations. SDCCC’s principal operating revenues include 
event meeting space rental revenues, food and beverage commissions, event and cleaning service revenues, 
other ancillary service revenues and contributions from the City that are used to fund marketing, promotion 
and capital projects. SDCCC’s principal operating expenses includes salaries and wages, fringe benefits, 
utilities, repairs & maintenance, contractual marketing & sales, and depreciation.  All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. When both 
restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is SDCCC’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
  
B. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
SDCCC’s cash and cash equivalents for purposes of the statement of cash flows are considered to be cash 
on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from 
the date of acquisition.   



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

15 
 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
C. Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable is reported net of an allowance for estimated uncollectible amounts. Management 
estimates an uncollectible amount of $82,750 at June 30, 2023, using its allowance calculation methodology 
based on collection activity, historical write-off rates and comparable industry standards. 
 
Long-term receivables in the amount of $1,000,000 represent incentive payments to be received by SDCCC 
in equal installments of $500,000 on July 1, 2024 and July 1, 2026 from Centerplate in consideration of the 
SDCCC’s extension of Centerplate’s exclusive food and beverage contract through June 30, 2026. This 
agreement was amended on October 2, 2020 to further extend the remaining incentive payment amortization 
period to June 30, 2028.  
 
D. Note Receivable  
 
In January 2018, SDCCC entered into a non-interest-bearing agreement with Centerplate for SDCCC to 
fund the purchase of food service equipment in the principal amount of $574,556. The remaining principal 
balance of $374,556 as of June 30, 2023 is due and payable in full by Centerplate no later than June 30, 
2025, unless the contract is terminated prior to the due date.  Centerplate has the right to fully pay the 
principal amount owed to SDCCC prior to the due date with no prepayment penalty.  If the contract is 
terminated prior to the due date, the remaining principal amount owed to SDCCC becomes due and payable 
within 30 days from the date of termination.  
 
E. Prepaid Expenses 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid expenses. 
 
F.     Leases 
 
At the commencement of a lease with contractual terms longer than 12 months, SDCCC initially measures 
the lease payable at the present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term.  Subsequently 
the lease payable is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments received.  
 
Key estimates and judgements include how SDCCC determines (1) interest rate it uses to calculate the 
present value of the expected lease payments, (2) lease term, and (3) lease payments. 

 The interest rate is based on the rate stated in the lease agreement, if not stated, then SDCCC 
estimates in incremental borrowing rate based on the prime rate plus 1%. 

 The lease term includes the non-cancellable period of the lease. 
 
G. Inventory 
 
Inventory consists of spare parts that will be used and capitalized or expensed (according to capitalization 
policy thresholds) when the assets are placed into service.   
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

16 
 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
H. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at cost. Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of more than 
$15,000 per item and a useful life of greater than one year. Recurring normal maintenance and repair costs 
are charged to operation, whereas major repairs, improvements and replacements that extend the asset’s 
useful life or service utility are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method 
over the following estimated useful lives: 

 
  Years 
Data processing equipment and software                           3-10 
Telecommunication equipment                           5 
Office furniture and operating equipment                         7 – 15
Leasehold improvements                         10 – 30
   

 
I. Unearned Income 
 
Unearned income represents funds received from customers that pertain to enforceable future contractual 
obligations. Building rent deposits, revenue contract incentive payments and advertising payments are 
recognized once the event has occurred, or the contractual obligation has been fulfilled. The future events 
scheduled after June 30, 2024 are reported as noncurrent unearned income. 
 
J.  Compensated Employee Absences 
 
Accumulated annual leave (PTO) is compensated time off for eligible employees who are absent from work 
and is recorded in the Statement of Net Position. The amount recorded is expected to be used in accordance 
with SDCCC’s personnel guidelines for vacation, illness, and personal business, with a maximum 
accumulation of 480 hours per employee. Until March 31, 2020, full-time employees were allowed up to 
120 hours paid compensation in lieu of annual leave provided they maintained a minimum balance of 40 
hours and had taken a minimum of 80 hours of paid leave during the prior twelve-month period. This 
program was subsequently suspended for expense reduction purposes, with occasional time-restricted 
windows having taken place for payouts for balances meeting certain criteria (typically to reduce risk of 
accrual cap-outs for employees with higher balances). 
 
SEIU represented part-time employees are paid their annual leave balance that exceeds 40 hours within 30 
days of fiscal year-end.   Teamster represented part-time employees are paid their annual leave balance that 
exceeds 8 hours within 30 days of fiscal year-end. 
 
K.  Components of Net Position 
 
Net Investment in Capital Assets – This amount consists of capital assets net of accumulated depreciation 
and reduced by outstanding debt that is attributed to the acquisition, construction or improvement of the 
assets, net of any unspent loan proceeds, which as of June 30, 2023 was $11,580,103.  
    
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

17 
 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
K.  Components of Net Position (Continued) 
 
Restricted – This amount consists of restricted assets which are reduced by liabilities related to those assets. 
As of June 30, 2023, there were no restricted amounts.  
 
Unrestricted – This amount is the portion of net position that does not meet the definition of “net investment 
in capital assets” or “restricted net position”. 
 
L.  Income Taxes 
 
SDCCC has received notice from the Internal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income taxes 
pursuant to Section 501 (c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code. SDCCC is also exempt from state franchise 
taxes on related income pursuant to California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701(d).  However, 
the Corporation is subject to income taxes on any net income that is derived from a trade or business carried 
on, and not in furtherance of the purposes for which it was granted exemption.  No income tax provision 
has been recorded as the net income, if any, from any unrelated trade or business, in the opinion of 
management, is not material to the accompanying financial statements. 
 
M.   Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
Unites States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts 
and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. Management believes that 
the estimates made are reasonable. 
 
N. New accounting pronouncements 
 
The following GASB Statements have been issued and are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 

 GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. The implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 94 did not have a material impact on the financial statements.  

 GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, effective for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. Management evaluates the Corporation’s existing 
subscription-based information technology arrangements and chose not to apply this 
pronouncement to the Corporation’s financial statements since there is no material subscription-
based information technology arrangements. Hence, the implementation of GASB No. 96 did not 
have a material impact in the financial statements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

18 
 

NOTE 2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
N. New accounting pronouncements (Continued) 
 
The following GASB Statements have been issued but not yet effective for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
SDCCC is assessing what financial statement impact, if any, these Statements will have: 
 

 GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024. 
 GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, effective for the fiscal year 

ending June 30, 2024. 
 GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences, effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2025.   
 
NOTE 3.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments as reported in the statement of net position are categorized as follows at June 30, 
2023: 
 

 
At June 30, 2023, the book balance of SDCCC's cash on hand and deposits was $10,626,115 and the bank 
balance was $11,904,383. Of the bank balance, $250,000 was covered by Federal depository insurance. 
The remaining uninsured balance is collateralized, with the collateral held by an affiliate of the 
counterparty’s financial institution.  
 
A formal deposit and investment policy was approved in August 2010 and amended in December 2017 by 
SDCCC’s Board of Directors, which addresses custodial credit risk, interest rate risk, credit quality risk and 
allowable investments.  SDCCC is provided a broad spectrum of eligible investments under California 
Government Code (CGC) 53600 which includes: obligations of the U.S. government, its agencies and 
instrumentalities; investment grade state and local government securities; certificates of deposit; bankers’ 
acceptances; commercial paper: repurchase agreements; and money market mutual funds whose portfolios 
consist only of domestic securities. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cash and Cash Equivalents Investments

Cash on hand 12,062$                             -$                               
Bank checking and saving deposits 6,412,702                          -                                 
Bank money market account deposits 4,201,351                          -                                 
Fixed income investments 1,600,000                          22,745,894                      

Total cash book balance 12,226,115$                       22,745,894$                    



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

19 
 

NOTE 3.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
SDCCC’s Investment Policy is governed by the California Government Code (CGC), 56000 et seq. The 
following table represents the authorized investments, requirements and restrictions per the CGC and the 
SDCCC investment policy: 
 

Investment Type CGC

SDCCC 

Policy 1 CGC
SDCCC 
Policy CGC

SDCCC 
Policy

Local Agency Bonds 5 years 5 years None None None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations (bills, notes, 
or bonds)

5 years 5 years None None None None

State Obligations – CA and Others 5 years 5 years None None None None
CA Local Agency Obligations 5 years 5 years None None None None
U.S. Agency Obligations 5 years 5 years None None None None
Bankers’ Acceptances 180 days 180 days 40% 40% None None
Commercial Paper – Non-Pooled 
Funds

270 days 270 days 25% 25% Highest 
letter and
number 
rating

Highest 
letter and
number 
rating

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None
Non-Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 5 years None None None None

CD Placement Service 5 years 5 years 30% 30% None None
Repurchase Agreements 1 year 1 year None None None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements 92 days 92 days 20% 20% None None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 5 years 30% 30% A A
Money Market Mutual Funds None None 20% 20% AAA AAA
Collateralized Bank Deposits 5 years 5 years None None None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 5 years 20% 20% AA AA
Local Agency Investment Fund None None None None None None
Supranational Obligations 5 years 5 years 30% 30% AA AA
Insured Savings & Bank Money Market 
Accounts

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

1   
In the absence of a specified maximum, the maximum is 5 years.

Maximum Maturity
Maximum %
of Portfolio

Minimum Rating

 
 
Investments as reported in the statement of net position are categorized as follows at June 30, 2023: 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
 
GASB Statement No. 72 requires that investments be categorized within a fair value hierarchy based upon 
fair value measurements. Fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three 
categories: 
 
 Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices in an active market that are accessible at the measurement date 

for identical assets or liabilities; 
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are either directly or indirectly observable; 
 Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs are used when little or not market activity is available. 

 
Fair value is defined as the quoted market value on the last trading day of the period, obtained from various 
pricing sources by our custodian bank. SDCCC does not value any of its investments using Level 1 and 
Level 3 inputs.  Investment in repurchase agreements are valued at amortized cost and is exempt from the 
fair value hierarchy.  Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its 
equivalent) are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.  SDCCC values investments in government money 
market mutual funds at NAV, and therefore are not subject to the fair value hierarchy. 
 
 
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

20 
 

NOTE 3.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
The table below represents SDCCC’s fair value hierarchy for reporting its investments as of June 30, 2023: 

 

 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires that risks for deposits and investments with fair values as it relates to 
credit risk, concentration of credit risk, and interest rate risk be disclosed.  SDCCC minimizes exposure by 
limiting investments to short-term, safe securities such as mutual funds or similar investment pools to 
ensure preservation of capital as well as pre-qualifying brokers and diversification of the investment 
portfolio.  In order to maintain proper cash flow requirements, funds are continuously invested in readily 
available securities to ensure appropriate liquidity is maintained.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fair Value Level 2

Investment at fair value
U.S. Treasury Bills 2,433,090$        2,433,090$    
U.S. Agency Bonds 4,917,314         4,917,314      
Corporate Bonds 7,362,952         7,362,952      
Commercial Paper 2,315,248         2,315,248      
Negotiable CD 5,717,290         5,717,290      

22,745,894        22,745,894$  

Investment measered at amortized cost
Repo Agreements 1,600,000         

Investment measured at the net asset value (NAV)
Bank money market funds 4,201,351         

28,547,245$      



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

21 
 

 
NOTE 3.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. 
SDCCC mitigates this risk by investing a portion of funds in short-term securities of less than a year in 
order to meet operational cash requirements, and structuring the investment portfolio to allow securities to 
mature to avoid selling on the open market.  As of June 30, 2023, SDCCC’s investment interest rate risk 
by maturity is as follows: 

 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill their obligation to the holder of the 
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization (NRSRO). SDCCC mitigates credit risk through its Investment Policy. Section I of the 
Investment Policy outlines the authorized investments, requirements, and investment restrictions.  As of 
June 30, 2023, SDCCC’s investment and corresponding credit ratings are follows: 

 

Under 1  1 - 6  6 - 12  > 1 year Fair Value

U.S. Treasury Bills $767,012 -$               -$        1,666,078$      2,433,090$        
U.S. Agency Bonds -                  -                 -         4,917,314        4,917,314         
Commercial Paper 1,146,194         1,169,054        -         -                 2,315,248         
Corporate Bonds 1,349,316         -                 452,250   5,561,386        7,362,952         
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 3,418,866         2,298,424        -         -                 5,717,290         
Bank Money Market Funds 4,201,351         -                 -         -                 4,201,351         
Repurchase Agreement 1,600,000         -                 -         -                 1,600,000         

12,482,739$      3,467,478$      452,250$ 12,144,778$    28,547,245$      

Investment Maturity in Months

Fair Value Credit Rating

Commercial Paper 1,169,054$        A-1+

Commercial Paper 1,146,194         A-1
Corporate Bonds 892,260            A
Corporate Bonds 4,198,707         A-
Corporate Bonds 447,746            A+
Corporate Bonds 447,808            AA+
Corporate Bonds 459,639            AA-
Corporate Bonds 916,792            BBB+
Bank Money Market Funds 4,201,351         N/A
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 4,567,267         A-1
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 1,150,023         N/A
Repurchased Agreements 1,600,000         N/A
U.S. Agency Bonds 4,917,314         AA+
U.S. Treasury Bills 2,433,090         AA+

28,547,245$      



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

22 
 

NOTE 3.  CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
GASB Statement No. 40 also requires disclosure of investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury 
securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total investments. For 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, no investments made up 5% or more of the total funds invested. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk 
that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will 
not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another 
party. The California Government Code and SDCCC’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy 
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than 
the following provision for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution 
secure deposits made by state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral 
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market 
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited 
by the public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure SDCCC deposits by 
pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.   
 
NOTE 4.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023, is as follows:   
 

 
 
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the year ended June 30, 2023, was $2,921,622.   
 

Beginning Balance Transfers Ending Balance
June 30, 2022 Additions Deletions In/Out June 30, 2023

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Construction in Progress 609,726$                 2,057,214$      -$              (1,957,848)$      709,092$           

Depreciable Capital Assets
Furniture, Equipment and Software 6,186,389                -                 -                778,551           6,964,940           
Leasehold Improvements 64,816,402              -                 -                1,179,297         65,995,699         
Right-to-use Leased Asset -                         1,122,331        -                -                  1,122,331           
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 71,002,791              1,122,331        -                1,957,848         74,082,970         

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Furniture, Equipment and Software (4,251,915)               (470,934)         -                -                  (4,722,849)         
Leasehold Improvements (34,129,932)             (2,310,397)      -                -                  (36,440,329)        
Right-to-use Leased Asset Amortization -                         (140,291)         -                -                  (140,291)            
Total Accumulated Depreciation (38,381,847)             (2,921,622)      -                -                  (41,303,469)        

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 32,620,944              (1,799,291)      -                1,957,848         32,779,501         

Capital Assets, Net 33,230,670$             257,923$        -$              -$                33,488,593$       



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

23 
 

NOTE 5.  CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
A.   Compensated Employee Absences 
 
A summary of changes in accrued compensated employee absences for the year ended June 30, 2023, is as 
follows: 
 

 
 
NOTE 6.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
A.   Notes Payable, Financing Lease, and Lease Payable 
 
Notes Payable 
 
On April 15, 2013, SDCCC entered into a commercial lease agreement with CG 7600, LP (lessor) in which 
the lessor financed a warehouse capital improvement for SDCCC valued at $21,972. The agreement calls 
for the loan to be amortized as part of SDCCC’s monthly rent over 10 years at a zero percent per annum 
rate. The note payable was paid in full as of March 31, 2023. 
 
Financing Lease 
 
On December 6, 2016, SDCCC (lessee) and the City, as co-lessees entered into a Financing Lease 
agreement with the California Infrastructure and Economic Development Bank (I-Bank), as the lessor for 
a loan amount of $25,500,000 (the “Facility Funds”).  Under the Financing Lease agreement, the Facility 
Funds were used to pay the convention center building (the “Leased Asset”) improvement costs. The City 
and SDCCC are jointly and severally liable for all rental payment obligations under the Financing Lease 
agreement. The Facility Funds are secured by the Leased Asset. In addition, the Financing Lease agreement 
contains certain customary representations and warranties, affirmative covenants, and events of default. If 
such an event of default were to occur, the lessor under the Financing Lease agreement would be entitled 
to take various actions, including without termination of the Financing Lease, collect all amounts owing 
under the Financing Lease until maturity.  
 
The Facility Funds bear a 3.59% annual interest rate and a .3% loan administrative fee based upon the 
outstanding principal balance. The Financing Lease requires annual principal repayment commencing on 
August 1, 2019 and ending on August 1, 2041. Per agreement with the City, SDCCC has budgeted for and 
made payments on the full amount due under the Financing Lease beginning on August 1, 2019. In any 
given year, to the extent that rental payment obligations, infrastructure capital, and operations and 
maintenance expenditures exceed SDCCC’s available funding, SDCCC will seek further budgetary 
allocation from the City. 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance Balance Current
6/30/2022 Additions Retirements 6/30/2023 Portion

Compensated Employee Absences 1,164,094$      1,717,168$      (1,401,364)$      1,479,898$      1,479,898$      



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

24 
 

NOTE 6.  LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 
 
A.   Notes Payable and Financing Lease (continued) 
 
Lease Payable 
 
SDCCC entered into a noncancelable lease with effective April 1, 2023, through March 31, 2025, for the 
truck marshal yard and warehouse space. The total of principal and interest payments are $ 1,231,644 with 
an implicit rate of 9%.   
 
A summary of changes in notes payable, the financing lease, and lease payable for the year ended June 30, 
2023, is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance Current
6/30/2022 Additions Retirements 6/30/2023 Portion

CG 7600 LP 1,648$              -$               (1,648)$         -$                 -$               
iBank Financing Lease 23,224,305        -                 (813,670)        22,410,635        842,881          
Lease payable -                  1,122,331        (126,629)        995,702            541,962          

23,225,953$      1,122,331$      (941,947)$      23,406,337$      1,384,843$      
 

 
B.   Amortization Requirements 
 
Annual requirements to amortize the financing lease and lease payable as of June 30, 2023, including 
interest payments to maturity, are as follows:  
 

Principal Interest
Annual 

Fee Principal Interest

842,881$        789,412$    67,232$     541,962$    67,821$        
873,140         758,610     64,703       453,740      17,185         
904,486         726,701     62,084       -            -              
936,957         693,647     59,370       -            -              
970,594         659,407     56,560       -            -              

2029 - 2033 5,401,336       2,738,824   236,973     -            -              
2034 - 2038 6,443,033       1,678,428   149,923     -            -              
2039 - 2043 6,038,208       443,097     46,085       -            -              

22,410,635$   8,488,126$ 742,930$    995,702$    85,006$        

Financing Lease Lease Payable

2026
2027

Year Ending 
June 30,

2024
2025

2028

 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

25 
 

NOTE 7.  ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 
 
SDCCC receives contributions from the City as specified in a management agreement between SDCCC 
and the City.  The agreement provides that the City will allocate to SDCCC approved budgetary amounts 
for marketing, promotion and capital projects for the Convention Center.  During the year ended June 30, 
2023, SDCCC received $2,655,000 from the City as unrestricted funding to support operations.  
  
 
NOTE 8.  DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 
The San Diego Convention Center Corporation’s Money Purchase Pension Plan (Plan) is a governmental 
plan under section 414(d) of the Internal Revenue Code, which was established effective January 1, 1986, 
by SDCCC’s Board of Directors. The Plan is administered by SDCCC through a Defined Contribution 
Committee, represented by the SDCCC Board and staff, who act by a majority of its members in office to  
carry out the general administration of the Plan. Any recommended Plan amendments are subject to the 
approval and adoption by SDCCC’s Board of Directors. As part of the Plan, SDCCC through Board action 
selected Wells Fargo & Company as Trustee, to hold and administer Plan assets subject to the terms of the 
Plan.  The Plan is a qualified defined contribution plan and, as such, benefits depend on amounts contributed 
to the Plan plus investment earnings less allowable plan expenses. The Plan covers all employees who have 
completed at least 1,000 hours of service in one year and are not covered through a union retirement plan. 
Full-time employees are eligible to participate in the plan on the first day of the month after completing 
1,000 hours of service and receive contributions on a bi-weekly basis thereafter.   
 
Part-time employees not covered through a union retirement plan are eligible to participate in the plan after 
completion of 1,000 hours and receive contributions annually once they meet the 1,000 hours threshold 
requirement each year. For each Plan year, SDCCC contributes 10% of compensation paid after the 
employee becomes an eligible participant, which is transferred to the trustee on behalf of each qualifying 
individual. 
 
A Plan year is defined as a calendar year. The balance in the Plan for each eligible employee is vested 
gradually over five years of continuing service, with an eligible employee becoming fully vested after five  
years. Forfeitures and Plan expenses are allocated in accordance with Plan provisions.  
 
For the year ended June 30, 2023, pension expense amounted to $1,288,763 with no employee contributions 
made to the Plan. Included in pension expense were forfeitures in the amount of $139,165. SDCCC records 
pension expense during the fiscal year based upon employee compensation that is included in qualified 
gross compensation.   
 
During fiscal year 2023, a non-qualified supplemental catch-up contributions of $3,101 were made to the 
457b plan for CEO Clifford Rippetoe. This was to make up pension shortfalls for calendar year 2022. These 
catch-up contributions of retirement expense were included as a part of the pension expense amount 
described above. 
 
 



DRAFT

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
(A Component Unit of the City of San Diego, California) 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued) 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023 

 

26 
 

NOTE 9.  COMMITMENTS 
 
SDCCC as Lessor 
 
Effective March 22, 2013, SDCCC entered into a sublease agreement for truck marshal yard space for an 
initial term of 60 months, from April 1, 2013, through March 31, 2018, and exercised its option to extend 
for an additional five years effective April 1, 2018 – March 31, 2023.  The agreement was not renewed and 
continues on a month-to-month basis. 

 
Rental income related to the sublease was $180,940 for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
 
Construction Commitments 
 
As of June 30, 2023, SDCCC has begun work for electrical infrastructure upgrade and repair, and fire pump 
replacement projects.  Chula Vista Electric Company has been contracted to conduct the electrical 
infrastructure upgrade work and started during fiscal year 2023 with a remaining commitment of $446,775.  
Bradshaw Engineering has been engaged for the fire pump replacement with a contracted amount of 
$363,043.   
 
NOTE 10.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
 
SDCCC is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.   
 
SDCCC is subject to various lawsuits as well as grievances by labor unions. SDCCC’s management 
believes, based upon consultation with SDCCC attorneys, that any unasserted claims, in the aggregate, will 
not result in a material adverse financial impact on SDCCC. 
 
SDCCC is covered by various insurance policies, the largest of which include property, liability and 
workers’ compensation, with deductibles that vary from $5,000 to $250,000. SDCCC management believes 
that SDCCC’s insurance programs are sufficient to cover any potential losses should an unfavorable 
outcome materialize. There have been no insurance claim settlements that exceeded insurance coverage 
during the past five fiscal years. 
 
NOTE 11.  EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Management has evaluated the financial statements for subsequent events through October XX, 2023, the 
date the financial statements were available to be issued. Management is not aware of any subsequent events 
which would require recoding or disclosure in the financial statements. 



DRAFT

 

 

This page left blank intentionally. 



DRAFT

27 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial  
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Audit Standards 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Board of Directors 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation 
City of San Diego, California 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards), the financial statements of the 
San Diego Convention Center Corporation (SDCCC), a component unit of the City of San Diego, 
California, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise SDCCC’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
October 26, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered SDCCC’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SDCCC’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the effectiveness of SDCCC’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether SDCCC’s financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed 
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  



DRAFT

28 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

San Diego, California 
October 26, 2023 



Agenda Item 3.C.1San Diego Convention Center Corporation
October 2023 Report | Strategic Direction Through FY25

1. Grow and Nurture Culture
Build a thriving team, provide high-quality jobs in the community, and earn a reputation as a top workplace.

OBJECTIVES

• Stabilize workforce by offering competitive compensation, career progression opportunities, and safe working conditions.
• Strengthen management by reinforcing a culture of trust, respect, and accountability.
• Reinstitute sense of purpose, commitment, and loyalty among staff.

Completed or on track Delayed Reprioritized

1

FY24 KPIS/MILESTONES GOAL DATE STATUS NOTES

Create talent acquisition (recruiting) program. 9/23 Completed. In the implementation and training stage.

Revise onboarding program. 12/23 On track. Implement the following 3 months.

Execute all union agreement renegotiations to align with objectives. 6/24 Next CBA expires in 6/2024. 

Revamp safety orientation program. 6/24 On track. Implement the following 3 months.

Develop performance management program. 6/24 On track. Implement the following 3 months.

Create employee relations program. 6/24 On track. Implement the following 3 months.



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
October 2023 Report | Strategic Direction Through FY25

2. Develop a Facility Maintenance and Improvement Program
Maintain our building to continue to be a premier gathering place.

OBJECTIVES

• Reduce reactive repairs and maintenance.
• Increase capital project planning and phased asset replacement.
• Develop long-term funding plan.

       

FY24 KPIS/MILESTONES GOAL DATE STATUS NOTES

Hire Electrical & Mechanical Engineers. 1/23 Completed.

Replace the maintenance work order system. 10/23
Implementation efforts are ongoing with anticipated go-live end of 1/24.
Currently working on data cleanup and conversion. Next phase includes 
internal customer work order portal.

Hire Project Administrator. 12/23 New addition. Actively recruiting position.

Hire Project Control Analyst. 1/24 New addition.

Create proactive, routine, and major maintenance plan. 4/24 On track.

Develop work order metrics to measure workloads and timeliness. 6/24 On track.

Completed or on track Delayed Reprioritized

2



OBJECTIVES

• Optimize practical occupancy with high-spending, quality room night clients, by focusing on medical conventions and corporate events.
• Generate more ancillary revenue for in-house partners.
• Implement meeting room charges and revised overall rental policies to increase gross rent revenue by 20%.
• Optimize allocation of direct event labor.

FY24 KPIS/MILESTONES GOAL 
DATE STATUS NOTES

Transfer responsibility to SDTA to provide economic impact figures on visitor spending. 9/23 On track.  SDTA and SDCC collaborating on revising formula.

Develop and implement revised parameters regarding negotiated Food & Beverage 
Minimums for future events.

12/23 Completed; revised parameters introduced 9/15 and now in use.

Update liquidated damages language on Group Confirmation Agreement (GCA) to 
enhance protections for SDCC in situations where clients cancel their upcoming events.

12/23 Completed; revised parameters introduced 9/15 and now in use.

FY24 partner gross revenues to rebound to FY19 levels. 12/23 Completed.

Increase gross rental revenue booked in FY23 (for future events) by 20% compared to 
FY18.

1/24 On track.

Complete competitive set rental study. 3/24 In progress; have received information from 15 convention centers and are 
currently compiling and analyzing findings for comparative purposes.

Executed contract and development of marshalling yard property. 3/24 In progress; revised target date: 3/25.

Implement scheduling software and event labor analytics to allow 4-hour shift work to 
optimize workforce resources.

6/24 On track.

San Diego Convention Center Corporation
October 2023 Report | Strategic Direction Through FY25

3. Refine Business Model to Ensure Financial Viability
Lead revenue optimization and cost management by attracting high-quality events.

Completed or on track Delayed Reprioritized

3



San Diego Convention Center Corporation
October 2023 Report | Strategic Direction Through FY25

4. Engage the Community
Strengthen relationships and enhance understanding of our economic and community impact.

Completed or on track Delayed Reprioritized

4

FY24 KPIS/MILESTONES GOAL DATE STATUS NOTES

Implement digital asset management system to streamline sharing of photo and video 
assets with media, clients, and partners.

10/23 On track. Implementation of the Canto system is underway and on 
schedule. Trained sales and event managers on the system in early October.

Achieve social media engagement growth of at least 10% each year. 6/24 On track.

Earn positive coverage with at least 25 major media stories each year. 6/24 On track. To date, more than 15 major media stories have covered SDCC as 
a premier gathering place and economic driver.

Participate in at least 12 presentations or panel discussions each year. 6/24 On track. 4 presentations completed (July-Oct).

Lead or participate in at least 12 collaborative activities each year (e.g., donation drives, 
volunteer efforts, community events).

6/24 On track. Participated in activities with San Diego Pride, InterPride, 
Environmental Health Coalition, and Operation Clean Sweep (July-Oct).

Achieve purpose-driven involvement with >50% of Leadership staff participating in 
civic/community/industry organizations to support our communication objectives.

6/24 On track to maintain at least 50% involvement among Directors and above.

Light the Sails Pavilion in support of at least 48 community efforts or awareness days. 6/24 On track. Sails lit for 19 community efforts or awareness days (July-Oct).

OBJECTIVES

• Effectively communicate the San Diego Convention Center purpose as an economic driver and premier gathering place.
• Educate key stakeholders on the value of outside visitor spending that grows the region, alleviates taxpayer burden, and contributes to a thriving downtown.
• Strengthen relationships with community organizations, educational institutions, and industry partners to support shared success.
• Build understanding of the need to invest in our future, and the value of this investment.



Agenda Item 3.D.2 
 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Corey Albright, Chief Operating Officer 
  
DATE: For the Agenda of October 25, 2023 
 
RE: Authorization to Contract for Fireproofing Services 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
California Building Code requires the various exposed steel beams throughout the San Diego 
Convention Center to be coated in a fire-resistive material for building and life safety. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Staff identified areas requiring improvement and engaged with the fire marshal’s office to further 
develop the scope of fireproofing services required to ensure regulatory compliance and best 
practice. Staff issued a request for proposals from qualified contractors to provide fireproofing 
services and received two (2) proposals: 
 

Bidder Cost 
Anning-Johnson $307,500 

Raymond San Diego, Inc. $178,575 
 
Bidder evaluation was based on a best value determination using the following criteria: cost 
40%, work plan 15%, company resume 10%, comparable projects 20%, safety record 10%, and 
terms and conditions 5%. An evaluation committee was formed and determined Raymond San 
Diego, Inc. to be the best value contractor.  
 
Staff recommends awarding a contract to Raymond San Diego, Inc. with a not to exceed budget 
of $200,000, inclusive of a contingency allowance. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend approval to authorize contract with Raymond San Diego, Inc. for fireproofing 
services with a not to exceed project budget of $200,000. 
 
 
__/s/_______________________ 
Corey Albright 
Chief Operating Officer 



Agenda Item 3.D.3 
 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION 
M E M O R A N D U M 

 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Corey Albright, Chief Operating Officer 
  
DATE: For the Agenda of October 25, 2023 
 
RE: Authorization to Contract for Uniform Purchase 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The San Diego Convention Center Corporation provides uniforms for various positions such as 
public safety, guest services, cleaning services, event setup crew, and several other positions as 
required. This has been accomplished through a lease agreement that covered both the garment 
rental and laundry services. The current uniform contract is set to expire in February 2024. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In April 2023, Staff issued a request for proposals for qualified companies that could provide 
either uniform rental or uniform purchase services, along with a few optional services such as 
laundry, alterations, and garment repair. Staff received one (1) proposal covering both lease and 
purchase options from UniFirst, the parent company of Specialty Apparel (current vendor). 
 
Staff developed a forecast for both uniform lease and purchase options over the proposed four 
(4) year contract term. The lease option for the four (4) year term is estimated to cost 
$393,701.35 for garment rental and laundry services. The purchase option is estimated to cost 
$417,646.42, comprised of $262,606.42 for garment purchase and $155,040.00 ($38,760.00 
annually) for an employee uniform allowance for represented staff to cover the purchase of 
optional uniform components and laundry services. 
 
Staff conducted a thorough evaluation considering the financial implications and qualitative 
benefits of both options and determined the uniform purchase option to be the most 
advantageous. Staff recommend awarding a contract to UniFirst for ongoing uniform purchase 
requirements. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve authorization to contract with UniFirst for ongoing uniform purchase requirements. 
 
 
_/s/________________________ 
Corey Albright, 
Chief Operating Officer 



   

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales September 2023 Sales Activity Report 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
              
              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CONTACT:  Andy Mikschl, Executive Vice President, Sales, San Diego Convention Center 
         Andy.mikschl@visitsandiego.com I 111 West Harbor Dr., San Diego, CA  92101 
         619.525.5282 

SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER/ SHORT TERM SALES 

SEPTEMBER 2023 SALES ACTIVITY REPORT 

SHORT TERM BOOKING ACTIVITY 
Conventions, Corporate Events, Consumer Shows, Community Events, & Local Meetings 

FY24 PERCENT TO GOAL  
Convention Center Rental Revenue 

 
FY24 

 SEPTEMBER 23 
FY23 

SEPTEMBER 22 
CUMULATIVE 

FYTD 2024 
CUMULATIVE 

FYTD 2023 

D
EFIN

ITE
 

EVENTS 3 4 9 15 

ATTENDANCE 7,150 11,400 124,350 36,514 

ROOM NIGHTS 6,295 450 8,507 5,385 

RENTAL REVENUE $112,450 $92,100 $487,530 $417,950 

 GOAL YTD PERCENT TO GOAL 

CONTRACTED RENTAL REVENUE $1,500,000 $487,530 32.5% 

Agenda Item 3.E



 2 

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales September 2023 Sales Activity Report 

CONTRACTED SHORT TERM EVENTS/ SEPT 2023 

EVENT NAME 
EVENT 
DATES 

PROJECTED     
ATTENDANCE 

PEAK ROOMS ROOM NIGHTS RENTAL  

The IR Show Winter 2025 01/22/25 750 250 750  $49,800  

San Diego Home Fall Show 2024 08/24/24 5,000 0 0  $15,400  

Proofpoint Sales Kickoff 2024 01/15/24 1,400 1,400 5,545  $47,250  

TOTAL    7,150         6,295 $112,450 



 3 

 

 San Diego Convention Center Short Term Sales September 2023 Sales Activity Report 

CONTRACTED SHORT TERM EVENTS/ FY24 YTD                                                  

EVENT NAME 
EVENT 
DATES 

PROJECTED 
ATTENDANCE 

PEAK 
ROOMS 

ROOM 
NIGHTS 

RENTAL  

San Diego International Auto Show 2023 12/29/23 100,000 200 800  $194,400  

West Coast Conference Cheer & Dance  2023 10/29/23 2,500 0 0  $10,400  

AGWest Board Meeting & LAC Orientation 02/07/24 100 350 800  $6,600  

LSX RNA Leaders USA Congress 2024 09/04/24 600 150 300  $20,790  

Sharp Healthcare All-Staff Assembly  11/19/24 12,000 0 0  $76,250  

JOGS San Diego Gem & Jewelry Show 10/28/24 2,000 80 312  $66,640  

The IR Show Winter 2025 01/22/25 750 250 750  $49,800  

San Diego Home Fall Show 2024 08/24/24 5,000 0 0  $15,400  

Proofpoint Sales Kickoff 2024 01/15/24 1,400 1,400 5,545  $47,250  

TOTAL     124,350        8,507 $487,530 



San Diego Citywide Sales OCTOBER 2022 Sales Activity Report 

 

  

CITYWIDE PRIMARY MARKET 
Conventions, Trade Shows, Corporate & Incentive Events 

  

D
EFIN

ITE 

FUTURE YR 
BOOKINGS 

SEPTEMBER 
2023 

SEPTEMBER 
2022 

SEPTEMBER 
2018 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2024 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2023 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2019 

CONVENTIONS 2 4 2 4 8 9 

ATTENDANCE 23,000 17,500 12,200 41,800 38,500 54,400 

ROOM NIGHTS 60,390 39,587 23,213 99,483 66,324 66,902 

 
  

TEN
TA

TIV
E 

FUTURE YR 
BOOKINGS 

SEPTEMBER 
2023 

SEPTEMBER 
2022 

SEPTEMBER 
2018 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2024 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2023 

CUMULATIVE 
FY2019 

BOOKINGS 20 8 7 61 17 24 

ATTENDANCE 184,500 182,030 77,800 620,300 262,930 543,300 

ROOM NIGHTS 429,606 36,952 99,670 1,176,026 203,171 1,140,354 

 
  

FY
1

9
 C

O
M

P
A

R
ISO

N
 

 
CUMULATIVE FY2024 CUMULATIVE FY2023 CUMULATIVE FY2019 

DEFINITE TOTAL ROOM NIGHTS 
VARIANCE COMPARED TO FY2019 

99,483 

+48.6% 

66,324 

-.086% 

66,902 

TENTATIVE TOTAL ROOM NIGHTS 
VARIANCE COMPARED TO FY2019 

1,176,026 

+3.1% 

203,171 

-82.1% 

1,140,354 

 

DEFINITE EVENTS BREAKDOWN 

Conventions, Trade Shows, Corporate & Incentive Events booked in September 2023 
 

Account Name 
National Sales 

Director 
Event Begin 

Date 
Event End 

Date 
Room 
Nights Peak Rooms 

Estimated 
Attendance SDCCC ID # 

SDTA ID 
# 

Confidential Group 
Kim Borneman 09/01/2025 09/05/2025 

10,390 3,200 5,000 
2829-65-65-

8161 
1231512 

 

International Society for 
Technology in Education 

Angie Ranalli 06/26/2033 06/28/2033 
50,000 12,000 18,000 

2829-65-65-
4545 

1228035 

Total       60,390 
15,200 Total 
7,600 AVG 23,000   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SAN DIEGO CITYWIDE SALES 

SEPTEMBER 2023 SALES ACTIVITY REPORT 

Agenda Item 3.E



 
 

 
 
 
NOTE: 

• 2023 Definite Total Room Night Changes: -48,793 in definite group room block adjustments. 

• 2024 Definite Total Room Night Changes: +17,700 in definite group room block adjustments. 

• 2025 Definite Total Room Night Changes: +10,390 New Definite, +770 Jack Henry Definite Group increase, -17,705 
definite group decreases (Confidential Group updated room block peaks and flow based on current trends) 

• 2028 Definite Total Room Night Changes: +15,711 in definite group increases (ISTE increased from 8500 to 12K peak) 

• 2029 Definite Total Room Night Changes: -17,095 in definite group decreases (AAOS adjusted pk from 16K to 12.5K) 

• 2032 Definite Total Room Night Changes: -17,095 in definite group decreases (AAOS adjusted pk from 16K to 12.5K) 

• 2033 Definite Total Room Night Changes: +50,000 New Definite (ISTE) 

• 2035 Definite Total Room Night Changes: -1,125 in definite group room block adjustments (AAOS) 
 

3 San Diego Citywide Sales September 2023 Sales Activity Report 


	Board -Agenda10-25-23
	(3A) Board Minutes 9-27-23
	FY23 SDCCC SAS 114 Communication TCWG Draft
	FY23 SDCCC BFS Draft
	October-2023-Strategic-Progress-Report
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4

	(3D2) Memo re Fireproofing
	SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
	M E M O R A N D U M
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	(3D3) Memo re Uniforms (BOARD)
	SAN DIEGO CONVENTION CENTER CORPORATION
	M E M O R A N D U M
	BACKGROUND
	DISCUSSION
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION


	September FY24 short term sales report
	SAR September 2023



